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ALLEGED MISCONDUCT: 
GENERAL KEVIN P. BYRNES, U.S. ARMY 

COMMANDING GENERAL 
U.S. ARMY TRAINJNG AND DOCTRINE COMMAND 

t INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY 
. . . 

We initiated the investigation to address an allegation that General (GEN) Kevin P . 
·. Byrnes, U .. S:. Atriiy, Conunaridirtg General, U.S .. Army Training and Doctrine Command 
.. . _ (TRADOC), · had an adulterous relationship with Ms .. A, a married woman.. As afesult of 

. . ·· evidence obtained d.mmg bur initial work on the matter, we identified additional allegations ' 
. aganis't GEN Byrnes and expanded our investigation. Accordingly, we addr·essed allegations that 
GENBytnes: . 

JUL 2 9 2005 

' '. 

• Had an aduiterous relationship with Ms . A, a mauied woman. If substi.n.tiated. such 
conduct could be characterized as constituting a violation ofUnifonn Code of 
Militru:yJustice (UCMJ), Aiticle 1.34, "Adultery."1 

• Will.fullydisobeyed the command of GEN Peter J. Schoomaker, {J..S., Anhy, Chiefof 
Staff ofthe u:s .. A:i:my, to cease contact with Ms. A.. tfsubstantiated, such conduct ·. 

. could be cfo~.racterized as constituting a violation of UCMJ, Articie 90, ''Willfully 
'dfoobeying superior commissioned officer." . . ' . . : .. l

I
~ ' .· ~ . . . . 

• 

. __ :J._ ~ .. .. ·.).~· '! ~ '"\\' . _;. . . :;t_~· - . ;._ _.. ,.~,i ' . .· ,, . . ·. ' ' .:· . ·.·. · . .. ~:\ . ; ~; .• - .·_ - . 

, Ertgagecf in cohducfthat was ti.tibecoming an officer ~d gentlemen. If substantiated , 
· '. stic~ conduct'could be chafacteiized asconstituting a violation of"UCMT, Article 1.33, . 

·. «conduct tinbecoming an officer and gentlemhll,'; and would violate Aiiny 
Regulation 600:-100;-''Army Leadership/' dated Septembet· 11, 1993; and Titfo 10, 

. United_ States Code, Section 3583, ''Requirement 'of exemplary conduct.." . 

-· · _ Failed to ~e ·tlie <1dvetnment-sponsored, contractor~issueduave1 cbatge caid . 
·. '. (Govt?t.l'.liiient travel card) foi' expenses arising froni official Government travel. If 

substaritiatoo,:stich conduct tyould viqlate DoD 7000.:14-:R, ''DoD Fiilanciai · 
Manage:fuent Regulations (FMRs),'' and TRAboc Regulation 37~3~ ''Government . 
Tiave!Caid' Program..'; 

. , . · ... ' .., 

. I . . . .. _ . . . . . . . '· . 
J>ursuantto Section·8(d) of the I.µspector General Act, we reported GEN Byznes' suspected violations of the UCMJ 

to the Secretary ofthe Anily, though the Army Inspector General. · . . 

Ji8R Qffiii:t'.a UOfisl 81 Mi, 
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We substantiated allegations that GEN Byrnes had a:n adulterous relationship with Ms. A, 
a mru:iied woman; willfully disobeyed the command of GEN Schoomaker to cease contact with 
Ms A; engaged in conduct that was unbecoming an officer and gentlerriail; and failed to use the 
Goveimnent travel caid for e · enses arising from official Goveinment traveL We did not 

· substantiate the allegation 
. ' . . . 

Specifically, with regard to the substantiated allegations we found that GE~ Byrnes 
engaged~ adulterous conduct with Ms. A over a perio~ that spanned.003~ 
2005. This adulterous conduct occun-ed at hotels inlll at which . . GEN . .Byrnes ·. .. . stayed ; .· . w~ 

, Goveimneilt ~S .. A's hotel rooms g I We futther 
. · found that on~005, GEN Schoomaket.issued a ':wful order to GEN Byines to cease 

contact with Ms .. A. Yet, we determined that after · 2005, GEN Byrnes engaged in 
sexuai intercoutse with Ms .. A on four occasions and ma e . . telephone calls to her.. We 

· detennined that GBNJ3ynies' adulterous xelationship with Ms. A and his will:.fui disobedien.ce of 
GEN Schoemaker' s o:i:der were each conduct that was unbecoming an officer and gentleman. 
R.egru:ding the allegation that GEN Byrnes failed to use the Government travel card for expenses 
arisiilg . from official Government travel, we reviewed GEN Byrnes' travel r'ecords and 
d~tertniiled that on at least 10 trips GEN Byrnes used his personal creclit card to pay foi' hotels .2 

Response to Tentative.Conclusions 
. . 

. By°letter, dated.June 6, 2005, we offered GEN Byrnes an opportunity to comment on the 
'U11tia.l tesuits of our investigation in which we substantiated aUofthe allegations. fu a 
·memotandi.un to this Office, dated July 12, 2005, GEN Byrnes responded (tl:uough counsel) to 
ori.Iy two of our initial ccmclusions.3 In his response GEN Byrnes did not com.rilent on our 
coricfosions with regard to his engaging in an adulterous relationship with Ms. A, his 
disobedience of GEN Schootnak:er' s order cease contact with Ms .. A, and his engaging in conduct · 

• tinbecoining a:n officer and gentleman.. However, GEN Byrnes stated_....... 
d that he was unaware of the reqmrement to use the 

. Govertinien trave car .• · 

2 ·' ··· . . . . . . . . . ." . . . ." . . , ' . 
We reviewed GEN Byrnes' travel records foi· dates which Ms. A alleged she met GEN Byrnes while he was on 

. ·. official travel .. We also reviewed ail of GEN Byrnes' travel records for travel occuning aftet . ·a, 2005. 

' 3 . . . . . . - . . :· . - . . 
_ 'G~ Byrnes' attorney originally provide 

exec 
a :ri:lcinorandum, dated 2005, that was nearly identical fo the 

•. 2005, memorandum with the tion of correcting the "spelling of''Bymes" and replacin 

... 4 1-~<7 ·, ~;._•"'- ..... _ . '. :,-: . ·. . . • . ; . . . . 

. synopsis
....... • ...

·. Ihe following paragI"aphs provide what we believe is a reasonabie· · of GEN 
. -: • 

Bym~s' 
-, ~ . . . .' - . 

response . . However, 
.we·recognize that any attempt to suri:rinariie that response risks oversimplification and.omission. · Accordingly, we 

··incorporated comments by GEN Byrnes throughout this report where appropriate and provided a copy of his 
response to the Secretary of the Army, together with this repo1t. 

FOR OFFfCIAL USE OML'{ I, 
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Reg~ding the other contested allegation, that GEN Byrnes failed to use the Govenrinent 
ttavel card for expenses arising from official Government travel, GEN Byrnes provided in bis 
response that prior to his aide-de-camp raising the issue to him in ta.io05, the requirement to 
use the Govemment travel cru:d was not brought to his attention. Attached to the response was a 
:tnemotandum p1epar·ed by GEN Byrnes' aide-de-camp in which he stated that GEN Byrnes did 
not prepare bis own travel vouchers and was not provided copies of his ti:avel voucher 
woiksheets that had flagged bis failure to use the Government travel card . Further, the aide-de-

. camp stated that neither GEN Byrnes nor he had ever been contacted by finance office personnel 
regaidmg GEN Byrnes' use of his personal credit card .. After car'eful consideration of these 
matte1s~ i'eevaluation of the evidence, and conducting additional fieldwork, we stand by our 
conclusion. regarding this matter.. As discussed in detail in Section N .. C.. of the rep01t, we 
con.chided that GEN Byrnes knew, or should have known, ofthe requirement to use the 
Government travel card for expenses arising from official Government travel. 

This repozt sets forth our findings and conclusions based on a preponderance of the 
· evidence .. 

• IL BACKGROUND 

GEN Byrnes assumed his CUII'eht position as Comiilanding General, TRADOC, on 
· November 7, 2002 .. In this position GEN Byrnes is responsible for recruiting, training, and 

educating the Army's soldiers; developing its leaders; supporting training in units; developing 
. doctiine; establishing standards; and building the future Anny. TRADOC is comprised of more 

•- than 50,000 soldiers and Department of the Army civilians operating in 33 Army schools across 
i6 installations. GEN Byrnes is cun-ently stationed at Fort Monroe, Viiginia, and previously 
serVed as the Director, Army Staff. 

· III.. · SCOPE 

. As part of our investigation, we intexviewed witnesses with knowledge of the matters at 
· issue, to include Ms . A, GEN Schoomaker~ GEN Cody, and cuuent and former members of 
GEN Byrnes' staff we·reviewed documentation and voice recordings related to the matters and 
collected physical evidence, including clothing and a towel alleged to contain GEN Byrnes' 

· .. . semen. Because evidence provided reasonable grounds to suspect that GEN Byrnes' conduct 
· ·. could bfclfa.racterized as violations of the UCMJ, we provided him a DA Form 3881, ''Rights 

Wru:n:ing Procedme/Waiver Certificate," along with our· request to interview him .. GEN Byrnes 
declined to be interviewed. 

:, .. 
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N .. FINDINGS AND ANALYSIS 

( 
'· 

A . Did GEN Byrnes have an adulterous relationship with Ms. A, a manied woman? 

Standards 

UCMJ, Alticle 1.34, "Adultery" 

The elements of the offense of adultexy are: 

• that the Service member wrongfully had sexual intercourse With a certain person; 

• that, at the time, the Service member or the other person was matried to someone 
else; and 

• that, under the circumstances, the Service member's conduct was to the pr:ejudice of 
good order and discipline in the Armed Forces or was of a nature to bring discredit 
upon the Armed Forces" 

4 

Regarding the final element of the offense of adulte1y, to constitute an offense under 
Article 134, the adulterous conduct must either be directly prejudicial to good 01det· and 
discipline or Service disctediting" "Directly prejudicial" conduct includes conduct that has an 
obvibll'S and measutably divisive effect OD. unit Or organization discipline, DiOrale, olcohesioh, OI' 
is cleariy·dehimental to the authority, stature of~ ot respect toward a Service member. "Service 

. discrediting'.; conduct includes that which is open and notorious iri natwe and tends to bring the 
Service into disteplite, make it subject to publicddicule, orfower it in public esteem.. ·· 
Adulterous conduct that is pxivate arid discrete in nafu:re may not be Setvice discrediting, but/ . 
uiidettlie cfrcumstances, ma.ybe detexmirted to be conduct ditectlyprejtidrcial to good ordeflmd 
di~cipline" · 

the Manual fot Courts-Martial directs comm.anders to considet all relevant 
cifci.lfi:IStafices when determining whether adulterous acts are directly pr:ejuclicial to good order 
and discipline or Se1vice discrediting.. Specific factors to consider include: 

• the accused's mai:ital status, military rank, grade, or position; 

• the coactor' s mazital statil.s and relationship to the arined forces; 

• . the military status of the spouse of the coattor; · 
< .. -l 

• the misuse, if any, of Government time and resources to facilitate the commission of 
the conduct; 

• whether the adulterous misconduct involves an ongoing or rece:nt relationship or is 
. remote in time; and 

rOR: OflifCIAL USE OMUt 
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• the impact of the adulterous xelationship on the ability oftlie accused to pei:fo1m his 
duties in support or the Anned Forces .. 

Facts 

. Ori~OOS, an anonymous pernon (who we later lea.med was Ms: A) sent by 
facsimile 1etters to the attention of the Honorable Donald Rru:n~feld, Secretary of Defense, and 
GEN Schooiria.ker.. In these letters Ms .. A alleged GEN Byrnes had engaged in an adulterous 
teiationship with her fdt over a year. fu the letter to Secret~y Ruinsfold, Ms. A stated, 

· . 0h~b05, from his office, GEN Schoomaker ~alled GEN :Symes by 
telephorie:: Present in 

.. u.:s, 
GEN Schoohiaker's office wen.=, Major Genera.I Michael Marchand, 

Atmy, Assistant Judge Advocate General of the .Army, an • 
. · tts.,._Atmy, Chief of Ge:iieral Officei Management.. GEN Scho . . ttea I H g this 
. telephone conversation he notified GEN Byines of the general nature of the allegation against 
limi tliat was niade in the anonymous letter and of his intent to refer the allegation to this Office .. 
Fu:tiher; GEN_ ~chootnaker said he directed GEN Bytnes not to approach or call the woman who 
made . the allegation ii~ 

. 
iri fact, there was any . substance 

. 
to the allegation.. . . 

. f 

·_ fu 005, investigators from 0thls Office interviewed 
cuuent and foinier members of GEN Byrnes' staff_ All the witnesses provided testimony that 

· tended to I'efute the allegation that riiany of'the liaisons occurred while GEN Byrnes was bn -. 
. offici~l travel, . Some of the witnesses, including a former executive officer and former aide-de­
cattip, tzaVeled extensively with GEN Byrnes and testified they observed nothing to indicate . . 
9EN Byr:h~ engaged in any type of rnmantic relationship with a woman who was not his wife .. . 

. . Each of the witnesses considered the allegation not credible.. . 

The for:tner aide-de-camp t~ed he was often with Gffi't until the evening homs 
. and would :t'egularly meet him fu the.hotel workout facility early in 

. 
the moniing, at about . 

. ,·, p . ,.,, go from th~ workout facility, between 6.00 and 
1:00 a..m , to GEN Byrnes',' hotelroom to synchronize qEN Byrnes; laptop computer· and send 

Byrnes 

5 

"b'""'C.. 0, 'D,i
I I ' . . 
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his em.ails He stated he never saw any indication that another pernon had been in GEN Byrnes' 
I00tn. 

On 2005, GEN Schoomaker's office received a facsimile addressed to 
GEN Schoomakei in Which the anonymous author- (who we learned later was Ms .. A) stated th~t 
she hatj previousl Written to GEN Schoomaker about her affair with GEN Bymes and had asked 
that - In her second 
letter',. s:. s a e at 1t appear yrnes a not een ·ect to stop contacting her 
since he continued to call het" Ms .. A wfote that GEN Byrnes hadwanted her to. come to his 
room durin~ the · · · · · · · ·· · · · Ms . A stated, 

6 

. _ On·- 2005, Ms A contact~ GEN Scho~~aker's ~ffice by folephone . She was 
advised to contact our Office. Upon making telephone contact with us, Ms .. A consented to an 
interview under oath" During out interview Ms .. A stated that she was manied and had engaged 

. in an adulterous relationship with GEN Byrnes for abo_ut one and <Hie-half years .. She provided 
specific details of theit' relationship including when she first met GEN Byrnes, when 

. · GEN Byrnes first had sexual intercourse with her~ and where and when she and GEN Byrnes 
subsequently met and engaged in·sexual intercourse:. Ms . A also provided significant personal 
information about GEN Byrnes and agreed to contact members of this Office with additional 

. information. 

_· hi her chionology Ms .. A listed i:ooiri fmm e'rs o 'the 
· ovefmnent-:fiilided hotel rooms iri\vhfoh she alleged GEN Byrnes stayed while on official 

· trav-el and had sexual inter=course with li_et. She also provided dates on which she was in th:e 
d had sexual intercoUise with GEN Byuies in 

het'hbtel 1;oon1.. The fufotfuation. ih thisdtronology was consistent with, and more detaileq than, 
· what Ms .. A had reported· in h~t eatifor-telfphone interview, In her cluonology Ms. A· alleged: . 

.. 

,. 6 ' ' ·.· ' ' . ·. ' '' ' 
· Ms. A provided us with the event and location at which she and GEN Byrnes met. We confirmed that 
GEN Byrnes was present at the event as Ms .. A alleged . fo protect Ms. A's privacy, we did not identify the event 

7' . ' ' '' . ' ' ' ' ' ' ·. : . . . .· ' ' 
· 

. 
Ms,. A faxed a copy of the front side of GEN Byrnes' business. card and the back side ofa business card with·-

..,.. b,andwiitten that she alleged was his business card. We confirmed this was GEN Byrnes' oid cell · · 
· · p . . Ms.: A provided GEN Byrnes; new cell phone number as ·-for which he told her the 

coii.tfact will expire in ~005 . · · · 

FOR OFFlCfAL USE OU&Y 
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003, GEN Byrnes met Ms .. A in her hotel room 
e he engaged in sexual intercomse with her.. GEN Byrnes arrived at 

:her room at about 4:00 p.m. 

in- 7 

• . On 2003, GEN Byrnes stayed at the Maniott Hotel near the-
. Ms .. A spent the mght with GEN Byrnes in his room where he engaged in sexual 
intercourse with her. 

• 003, GEN Byrnes met Ms. A in her hotel room~ 
where he engaged in sexual intercotuse with her. 

• 
•. . 

· · 200.3, GEN Byrnes met Ms. A in her hotel room in . 
· ··. where he engaged in sexual intercourse with het .. GEN Byrnes 
· htid'recenfiy traveled tc4llilllamd bi·ought back · 
:~dp:resented it to Ms .. A as a gift.. · · · · 

• • 004, GEN Byrnes met Ms., A in her hotel room in-
. Byrnes had a day off and airived early in the iliornitig .. GEN BYn:ies 

. and.Ms . A spent the day together and went for a drive in hi · 
- GEN Byrnes told Ms. A that hi 

dE'.N Byrnes said 2004.. . At some point during · 
the day.he engaged iii sexual intercourse with Ms .. A iii her h:6tel room: 

• ·ll!i()ft . . . . ·. 004, GEN Byrnes met Ms. A in her hotelroomin-
.. _. ·.·· , _ . · ·,_Wlier:e he engaged in sexual intetcomse with bet. GEN Byrnes az1ived at 
· a8ou .. 30 p.m.. . . 

• ·· . 2004, GEN 1:3ymes m~t Ms. A in h~r hotel room~~ . . 
. · ete he engaged m sexual mtercourse WJ.th her. GEN Byrnes a1I1ved at 

hl>bjit):30 p • .m. 

· •· . 004, GEN Byrnes met Ms: A in her hotel ro?J? 
···· .. ere he engaged in sexual intercourse with her .. . GEN Byrnes ainved at 

· · :,ab'out7:30 a..m: · 

in-- · 
• 

. . . . . 

004, GEN Byrnes was a.t the Ren'aissance H6t~l in 
s .. A wrote, 

8 . . ,. . ' . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . .· . 
 . , GE~ By.r~es: tr4vel vQubhe± and hotel receipt confirmed he was o:n qf:!icial travel and stayed at the Marriott 

Residei:l¢"e · . . _ . , . . n~003. The hotel is within . 
·

. 

.. 
9.·. -I ¥huon; froili a: iliemberof GEN Byrnes' staff confumed that GEN Byrnes 
ari 

purchased~ming 
official v.,isit,fo-003. _. • . . ... · . . · 

: . .:.., - - , . • . .. . . ' 

FOR OPFIGM:L US£ E»ffiY 
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GEN Byrnes and Ms. A met in the parking 
ot to w · c .she had directed him. Byrnes parked his car and traveled with 

Ms. A in her car to dine at a Mexican restaurant The two of them returned to the 
parking lot where GEN Byrnes picked up bis car and returned to the Renaissance 
HoteL Ms. A went to GEN Byrnes• room where he engaged in sexual intercourse 
with her. Ms .. A reported GEN Byrnes stayed in room-

• 0~004, GEN Byrne; was at the Hyatt Hotel in­
Ms:. A met GEN Byrnes in his hotel room where he engaged in sexual mtetcourse 
with her. Ms .. A repo1ted GEN Byrnes stayed in room-

8 

 

· d stayed 
2004 .. 14 While at. 

arientertainer ..-... 

hich GBNB\nnes subsequently gave to Ms. A as 

• 

· u I'~ny c~nfuined that o~004, while staying at the Renaissance Hotel~ 
. . GEN Byiries told hi~t he was meeting friends for dinner a:nd GEN Byrnes took a 

Goverinn:ent~fiinded tezital car for his use .. 

11 .. . . .. . · · .. . · . · 
GEN 13yroes' travel vouchex. and hotel teceipt confirmed he was on official travel t and 

stayed at the.Renaissance Hotels and Resorts 

1~ ~~ Ryrhes' travel voucher confumed he was on official travel to . . . . f 2004 .. 
· (IE~ Brtes' ~ffice did not have a copy of his hotel receipt fox this ti:ip and we were unable to confirm he stayed in 
room . , ·: . . 

- ~. .~ 
. 
~

G~ 
. 

Byrnef 
. 

travel voucher 
. · . . . . 

confinned he was in leave status fro 004,at-

. . .. ,,~.'~~~~004,a 
... . . ' 

15 ·.·· '· · . ·: • . · · · 
. ~·)4s: A 'x'ovided us. with a copy ofa photograph of 

·ven to het by GEN Bym7s .. 
16 t · .. .. · 

. · ,· . r~on:y from a member of GEN Byrnes' staff confumed he flew from 
· ! ~004, and returned to 

·: -, . . 

17.· 6~ :s~~~s.' itinenuy confumed he had a teserved seat on United Airlin:es Fligh~hich departed 
· ~04, at 1 :55 p ril. from I emunal 7 . We confinned that Gate 72 is in I enninal 7 . . . · 

fromall 

FOR: OFFICIAL US~ ffitt:f 
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• On~004, GEN By.mes traveled to~n official business .18 

• On~004, GEN Byrnes met Ms .. A in her hotel room in · 
where he en a ed in sexual intercourse with her.. GEN Byrnes also 

9 

nes was in ..... to attend an event at the . 
GEN Byrnes stayed at the Renaissance~ 

otel, . . Ms .. A met GEN Byrnes in his hotel room · · · 
w eie he engaged. in sexual intercourse with her. Ms .. A repozted GEN By.mes stayed 
iniooth-9 

• dn~004, GEN Byrnes met Ms .. A in her hotel room in­
.. wh~gaged in sexual intetcouzse with her .. GEN Byrnes -~t
· about 3:oo·p.m.. and stayed until about 10::30 p .. m.. 

 

• . Ori.~004, GEN Byrnes met Ms .. A in her hotel room 
where he engaged in sexual intercourse with her.. GEN Byrnes ~
about 6:00 p.m.. and stayed until about 10:00 p .. in .. 

m-..-a. 
 

• 0~004, GEN Byrnes met Ms .. A inherhot~l room~ 
wh~ed in sexual intercoli!se with her. GEN B nes anived at her rQo:il) at · 
about 6:00 p .. lll. and stayed until about 10:00 p .. m .. 

. -~ :·: . ~ . . _ · . · . . . . . . ' ' . 

. •. . · Qn-.ZOo4, GEN Byrnes met Ms .. A in her hotel room~ 
·· .. -where he engaged irt sexual intercouzse with her. ·GEN Byrn~ 

night and departed the next morning .. 20 . 
·.. .f 

18 G~Bymes' official ~lendar confumed he was 1wi·u.·. _.on official duty from 004 . 
. 19 . . ; . ·. • · . > . ·. .· . ·. ·. . . .· . ·. . 

GEN Byrn.es' travel voucher and hotel receipt coilfumed he was on official tiavel to .,, and ...... 
stayed at th~Reiiaissance~otel on9t2004, in roomlll .· 

. iii . .. , .... . · . . . . . . •. 
· GEN Byrnes' official calendar confirmed his.1ast scheduled apPo.intment o 2004, ended at 

5:00 p.m.. an,d that GEN Byrne-2004, · . 
:" . . , _ ., 

• • • • • ' :r ' • • ;.. ' • .. 
:

, 

21
. ·. rntN 

~ 

~ynies..iii' ·•trave . · .. ud,1er and hote1- receipt confirm. ed he was on official travei t~_- . _ ,,.; _d stayed ··~ : 

at~Manfo Hotel on "~ 
·. . .. . . . . · 

FOR OPFICVs::L USE.OMI.:Y 
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• 2004, GEN Byrnes stayed at the Marxiott 
Byrnes had dinner with~d several other people .. 25 

in­
• !ft~OOS GEN Byrnes tra~eled leave status. GEN Byrnes was 

· Joined b~d personal .fi.lends.. · 
to. 

• 

. . . . 

· · · bn~005, Ms .. A contacted our Office and played five recorded voice mail 
messages s~ were frmn GEN Byrnes .. Two of these messages were date stamped. 
These date stamps wete 005 .. 

. 22 . . . . : . . . . . .. . . 

GEN Byrnes' travel voucher confirmed he was on official travel to 

: 23 . ... . ... ' . . . . . 
. GEN Byrnes' travel voucher confirmed he was on official travel to 

. GEN Byrnes' aide0de-camp confumed GEN Byrnes stayed in roo 

. 24 ... • . . . . · . . . . . . . . . 
I estim"Ony :from a mefubei of GEN Byrnes' staff coiifiimed GEN Byrnes stayed in a _suite and in order to get to 

the bedroom.one had to walk tlnough the living room. · 

" 25 . ~ . ·. . . 

GEN'Byrnes' travd voucher confirmed he was on official tiavel to 
2004 . A membeI of GEN Byrnes' staff' confitmed he ate dinner with 

• ~~, -- . 
GEN 

. . 
Byines' travel voucher confumed he was on official travel to 

Hot~l -staff_c'cin.firmed GEN Byrnes was in roozn9nd a witness co 
coming off the elevator. .. 

·;.: . 
. 27 ·, . . 
· · Ms . A did not consent to a recorded interview. 

FOR OF:AGIAL USE OiH.rY 
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 . . 
. · ' . ~

· Ms. A permitted us to record three voice mail messages, date stamped __ 
. : 2()°05, from her cel1 phone 29 In a meeting with members of this Office on May 2, , 
· ·•· GEN Cody identified the i'ecorded voice as belonging to GEN Bymes.. GEN Cody noted that he 
. 
' 
·hadkhown GENByines for 

. 
year's and GEN Byines served 

. 
as his deputy in.one . assignment ... 

· Ms. A also 

. . - . . . . . ' 

Ms .. A also showed our investigators her cell phone display which listed 18 calls :from 
GEN Byrnes to her cell phone that were received or missed .. These calls, detailed in the table 
below, were ma:de between: 005 .. 

Time 
7:01 p .. m. 
7:00p . .m. 

11 :52 p . .m . 
5:22 pm. 
6:40p .. m .. 
7:13 p . .m.. 
7:43 p .. m. 
4:15pm. 
2:00p .. m. 

12:42p:.m .. 
6:12p .. m . 
6:23 p . .m. 
5:17p . .m. 
8:58 p .m.. 

Missed Calls 
Date Time 

6:30p.m. 
8:35p .. m .. 
7:I8p.m .. 
6:30 p.m .. 

Jnacidition to providing physical evidence to the investigators, Ms .. A discussed her 
· fueetihgs with GEN Byrnes.. She stated that she met GEN Byrnes while he was traveling and 
·. engaged in sexual intercomse in his or her hotel rooms. She said she wertt to GEN Byrnes' room 
. · at night, usually past 10:00 p.m .. Ms . A said GEN Byrnes called her and told her his room 

..;· . , - ._ . ;~· . ;, 

29 - Ihe~005, voice mail messages are ~e same messages Ms. A provided on41111!aoos. 
-



Ms:. A discussed one instance on-2004, when GEN Byrnes was on a trip to the 
d he told het that someone from his party was in the room 

directly across fiom his room.. S e said GEN Byrnes was especially careful on that occasion, 
directing her to foave her clothes in the bathroom and requiiing that she share with him a single 
glass from which to chink wine_ She stated that in the monring she saw GEN Byrnes make the 
bed so that it looked as if only one person had slept in it 

.. , . . 

,. 
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number; when to go to his room, and where his room was in relation to the elevator She said 
GEN Byrnes left his door ajar and she entered the room without knocking. She testified she 
would leave GEN Byrnes' room veiy early, before 5:00 am .. , because his aide would be coming 
byin the motning. 

· Ms .. A. also discussed that GEN Byrnes visited her in her hotel rooms when she was at 
She stated she called GEN Byrnes and told him her hotel and room number, 

e type o ren c · she was driving, and Where the t'entaI car was parked. Ms .. A said she did 
· not iock the rental car and left a·room key card in the car·. She said GEN Byrnes got the room 
key card from her rental car and went directly up to her room.. Ms .. A provided us with a room 
key card which she said might contain GEN Byrnes' fingerprints. Ms .. A stated GEN Byrnes 

. always wore a baseball cap when he came to visit hei· lli herhotel room.31 She also said that 
when she and GEN Byrnes ate while they were togethei the two oftheni usually had pizza .. She 
said GEN Byrnes· often: brought red wine to her hotel 1-00:tri which he said he received as gifts .. 

Ms .. A related an instance on 
·~ .·and . 
She said: that she and GEN BYrttes 

··.asserted ·· · · 

•., · , . · ·. . ·· Ms. A ptovi~ed us with a copy of 2004 and 2005 lilllllllacalendars.. She alleged the 
. calendars reflected GEN Byrnes• schedule and were prep~atshe and GEN:Byr:nes could 

plan when to meet Ms., A stated that sometimes GEN Byrnes reviewed his official calendar with · 

30. -· ·. . . . . . .. . . . . 
.. GEN Bytnes' fon:ner aide-de-camp recalled that GEN Byrnes' and his rooms were on the same floor. Ihe aide. 

could not iecall where his room was located iii :relation to GEN Byrnes• room . 
. 3i . . . . . . . . · . .· . . . . 
. Ms. A stated GEN Byrnes bad many different baseball caps but often wore. one which was. white or beige .. 
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her while she and GEN Byrnes were in bed together. She claimed the official calendars were on 
legal size paper, landscape oriented, and color coded.. She added that other times GEN Byrnes 
would give her his schedule when she and GEN Byrnes spoke by telephone. Ms . A's calendars 
listed dates and locations of GEN Byrnes' official and personal travel, to include GEN Byrnes' 
leave. GEN Byrnes' official travel included both overseas and domestic locations. The 
calendars also noted when GEN Byrnes entertained or dined at his quartets with members of 
Congress or their staffs, foreign officials, U.S. Army general officers, and his personal 
acquaintances in the entertainment and sports industries .. . Ms . A commented that the calendars 
were prepar·ed looking out to the future and occasionally GEN Byrnes' schedule changed; 
however, those changes were not noted in the calendars she kept.. 

We reviewed GEN Byrnes' official daily and monthly calendar·s for 2004 and 2005 .. We 
rioted that the monthly calendars were printed on over sized paper, were landscape oriented, and 
were color coded. Based on our review of the calendar's, we concluded GEN Byrnes, in fact, 
shared details of his calendars with Ms. A in advance of the events' occmtence. 

Regarding whether GEN Byrnes had provided Ms. A with bis official calendat, we noted 
that when 

rota 
Ms ... A first made contact with us on - 2005, she stated that GEN Byrnes was 

then and was rehuning the next day. Testimony and GEN Byrnes' official calendar 
confirmed this information was accurate .. 

. 'F1uther, the caleridars Ms. A IOvided us rnflect{!d that GEN B):'!nes was to travel to 

·• on , : °:nd · 20~~~ 
,'• - . ' . . ·aveled. to on these dates, but did not travel 

.t~. owever, ENByrnes'aide e.;campsatedthat~2004 
:G~d a desire to travel to eithe~priorto~in 

· -an.d plans 'had been made fotthis traveL~p also expressed smptise and 
· ~at we had a caleridat that listed the locations of GEN Byrnes' overseas travel because 
. 'this information was "cldse hold'' for Operations Secmity purposes.. The aide-de-camp stated 
that if a member of GEN By:tnes' staff had provided infoxtnation to someone without a need to · 
kriow' prior to his travel fo a cofubat zone, ''They would probably be moved [ out of their position] 
at'aminimum." He also pointed outthat GEN Byrnes official ca1endars oftert times did not 
ilichide the locations of h1s overseas travel for secUiityreasons.34 

· The calendar· A provided also listed GEN Byrnes as being on leave in from 
2005, with the notations,......, and - - ,- . 

. ( · ' -A ine#iber ofGEN B.yt:nes' staff con~ those ays he was· on eave ni 
·skiin~·with · :' The,staffmenibet also testified GEN Byrnes stayed at his condominium 

.. and hi · · , F1.UtJ:ier~ the staff member believed· GEN Byrnes' friend, 
visited GEN Byrnes for some pe1iod 

Ms. 

34 
· GEN Byrnes' official calendar blanked out his location when he traveled t~2004 and listed his 
, location as "OCONUS" during his trip to-.it2005.. . , . 
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Ms. A also alleged that GEN Byrnes talked about having friends in the entertainment field 
with whom he liked to spend time. She mentioned 

Ms .. A also ptovided numerous factual details that we were able to corroborate Some of 
the details included: 

• GEN Byrnes' 

• GEN Byrnes sold real estate he owned in. 
• GEN Byrnes' friert 

• 
• GEN Byrnes often a.te pizza .. 

• • GEN Byrnes' father • was a policeman and died about 2 years ago .. 

• GEN Byrnes had a ho lived· 

· .. . . . OnJallilt.2005, Ms .. A contacted us by telephone. She followed up this call with a 
facsimile c~g a chi·onology of additional dates on which she a.ileged to have met with 

: GENBytries arid engaged in sexual intercoutse with him.. In this chtonology Ms .. A allegedshe 
. met a.ndenga.ged m sexual inter'c~uf~r with ?EN .Byrnes 0~2004,-aiid 

. . . , . 005. In this cluortology Ms .. A alleged: · · 
. . . 

2004, GEN Byrnes met Ms .. A in her hotel room intllllillla 
e engaged in sexual intercour'se with her.. GEN Byr~d her 

3S 

33 · · Ms. A.had previously all~ged staying ·with G~N Byrnes on llllaroos 
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2004.. Later that day GEN Byrnes had his 
39 

. ·· · _ · 005~ GEN ~ymes m:t Ms .. A in he!· hotel room 
w ere he engaged m sexual mtercoutse with her.. 

m4lllla 

• _·_. . 2005, GEN ~ymes m:t Ms .. A in h~r hotel room 
where he engaged m sexual mtercoutse with her. 

in­

• · · oJlillllll. 2005, GEN Byrnes met Ms. A in her ho~el room in 
Wh~aged in Sexual intercoutse With her .. Ms .. A had 

.··. Fi~ally, o~,iOOS, GEN Cody issuetl a s~cond order to GEN Byrnes to cease ali 
contact with Ms .. ~fically, the no contact order directed GEN Byrnes 

(N]ot to initiate any contact or communication with anywotnari.(other 
tlian your wife) with whom you have had sexual, mtimate, 01' close 
pers?nal con~t from on or about llllllaZ005 to the present. In 
particular, tb,is mcludes any womrui\vrthwhom you inay have had 

' 'such contact at the 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

. Additionally, GEN Cody Ordered GEN Byrnes to recuse himself from 

[T]aking ariy actions under the UCMJ; participating in any adverse 
administrative or adverse personnel actions (military or civilian); ot 
diiectuig, appointing, or approving any investigations of misconduct 
until fu.i:thet notice .. 

39: •. . · . ·. · . 
. . OEN )3ymes' official calendar con.fumed th sheld on 
~004 .. 

40 W6 ~nfitmed GEN Byrnes was bom o~ 
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Discussion 

. · · We concluded that GEN Byrnes had an adulterous relationship with Ms . A during the 
. p~iio~ 0£92003 to-2005 .. This conduct could be characterized as constituting a 
violation of UCMJ, AitJ.cle 134, "Adultery .. " 

In reaching our conclusion we determined Ms .. A was a credible witness.. In addition to 
her demeanor du:ring interviews and telephone contacts with us, we were able to couoborate 
facts that convinced us of her veracity. Significantly, she provided us with date stamped voice 
mail m:essa:ges of GEN Byrnes' that were from her cell phone.. The voice on these voice mail 
messages was identified by GEN Cody as belonging to GEN Byrnes .. We also viewed the log of . 
received and missed ~alls from GEN Byrnes on Ms .. A's cell phone .. For the period o-
throu~ 2005, he made 18 calls to Ms .. A. · · · . 

. . 

16 

·. · We reviewed GEN Byrnes' travel records for the dates Ms .. A alleged to have met him . 
. In the chronology Ms .. A se:nt us oi.-a i005, she listed 14dates o:n which she asserted she 

met GEN Byrnes in her hotel room ~ged in sexual intercourse . She listed seven dates on 
which she claimed to have met GEN Byrnes in bis Government-funded hotel room and had 
sexual intercourse while GEN Byrnes was on official travel.. We reviewed GEN Byrnes' travel 

• vouchers and confirmed that foi each of the seven dates she stated that he was on official travel 
. she was correct.. For five dates Ms. A supplied the room numbers ofthe hotel rooms she claimed 
. GEN Byrri:e's occupied . . We confirmed that GEN Byrnes occupied the rooms that Ms. A said he 
did for four of those · dates:.41 Significantly, Ms. A accuiately identified the room in which 
GEN Byrnes stayed, anciin which she said GEN Byrnes engaged i:n sexual intercourse with her~ 

.during the~., .. · .. ... ,_ : .. ~n-... ·- . 2005 which was afte.i: GEN Schoomakerissued his no 
contact order to QEN Byrnes~mformed us that GEN Byrn . 

· · ··· and this was· co med by yr:nes' 

We also 4etetmined that tlie timing of visits as described by Ms .. A ( arriving at 
GEN Byrnes' hotel room aftet 10:00 p.m .. and depaiting the next morning by 5:00 a.m .. ) . 
explaine · · w the telatiortsbip escaped notice by others in bis party.. Ms .. A also provided us 
.With provided by GEN Bymes .. We consider Ms . A's 
ptovi . g ese ar c es as r . · on bet credibility.. Notably, with on:e minor . 

_exception-= a calendar e~try ab~ut whe:·e· GEN'~yrnes w~ to ~pend~ --- we 
were unable to refute or contradict any information Ms. A provided to us . . 

Additionally, two membets_ of GEN Byr~es; staff reviewed the copy of a page from 
Ms .. A's notebook which she stated GEN Byrnes wrote and contained his weightlifting routine as 

·41 .. . . ·. . · · . . , . .. . . . 
We were unable to determine what room GEN Byrnes occupied on one tr:ip because the hotel receipts were ·not 

-ret.amed wfrh GEN Byrnes' travelvouche:r . 
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well as a telephone number written on the back of GEN Byrnes' business card. Both witnesses 
identified, with 70 percent cextainty, the handwriting as belonging to GEN Byrnes. 

With regaxd to the first two elements of the offense of adultery, Ms .. A asserted she had 
engaged in sexual intercourse with GEN Byrnes and that she is married We noted she was 

._ wearing a wedding band when we inte1viewed her. A Depaxtment of Defense Employee 
tritei:'active Data System i"epo1t, dated April 18, 2005, cori:fumed GEN Byrnes had a spouse, 

17 

· Regaxding the final element of the offense of adultery, to constitute an offense under 
Article 134, the adulterous conduct must either be directly prejudicial to good order and 
clisdpline or Service disctediting. We concluded that GEN Byrnes• adulterous conduct with 
Ms~: A was diiectly ptejudicial to good order and discipline because it was clearly detrimental to 
his au.tho1ity, statute, and the respect diie him as an Almy general officer.. In that regaxd we 

· concluded: 

• GEN Byrnes was maxtied at the time and a general serving in position of 
significant authority as Commanding General, TRADOC; 

a 

• Ms .. A was :maxried; 

• GEN Bytnes engaged in sexual intercourse with Ms . A in his Government-· 
funded hotel rooms while dn official travel on seven occasions; 

• GEN Byrnes was ordered by GEN Schoomaker on~005, to cease 
contact with the woman with whoni he was alleged ~aged in an 
adulterous relationshi . Ye . GEN B nes engaged in sexual intercourse with 
Ms. Ao 2005; 

• GEN Byrnes' :adcltetous r:elations~p was ongoing arid recent, spannin. 
2003 throu~2005; _ . ·. · 

• · GEN Bym:e·s' conduct was inconsistent with :his responsibility as Commanding 
General, TRADOC, to train and educate, develop Aiiny leadets, and establish 
staridaxds~ and .involved a failure to obey the lawful order of GEN Schoomaket. 
GEN Byrnes' cortduct was disreputable and of a nature to lower the .Ainiy in public 
esteem; and · 

. . . . . 

• GEN Byrnes was ordered by GEN Cody o~005, to recusebirhselffrom . 
UCMJactions, adverse administrative and~ actions (tnilitary and civilian), 
and involvement in misconduct mvestigations .. As such, GEN Byrnes' adulterous 
relationship had a dfrect and deleterious impact on his ability to pe1fo1m his duties in 
support of the Armed Forces .. 
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GENBymes' Response · 

GEN Byrnes did not comment to our conclusion regarding this allegation.. Accordingly, 
we stand by our conclusion that GEN Byrnes had an adulterous relationship with Ms .. A, a . 
married woman .. 

B.. Did GEN Byrnes willfully disobey the command of GEN Schoomaker to cease 
contact with the woman with whom be was alleged to have engaged fn an adultetous 
:relationship? 

Standards 

U.Civi:J, Atticie disobeying superior commissioned officer~' 90, ''Willfully 

The elements of the offense ate: · 

• that the Service inenibe1 received a lawful command from a certain comirussioned 
officer, 

• that this officer· was the superior commissioned officer of the Service member, 

• that the Service merilbei:'kriew that this office~· was the Service member's· supe1ior 
commissioned 6.ffice1~ and 

• that the Service Di$ber willfully disobeyed the lawful command .. 

In evaluating GEN Byrnes' conduct in light of the cited standard, we reiterate evidence 
. -set fo1th abdve .. 

· Discussion 

. We concluded·tbat GEN Byrnes willfully disobeyed GEN Schoomaker, superior' -
conu:nissioned officer, by contacting Ms.: A after being order·ed to cease contact with the woman 
with whom GEN Byrnes WM alleged to have engaged in an adulterous relationship.. This ' ' 
conduct could be characterized as constituting a violation ofUCMT, Article 90, ''Willfully 
dis{)beyiri.g superioi' commissioned officer." Regarding the :first element of the offense,..Article 
90 of tlifTJCMJ :requites that a member recei\Te a iawful command:. The explanation of the 
offense in the Manual foi· Cotirts.;Martjal provides that foi· a coJfuhand or order to be lawful it 
must 1eiate to a qrilitaiy duty. A llrilitaty duty.includes ''all 
p1:omote the mornle, discipline, and usefulness of members of 

activities reasonably necessaiy fo . . : .. 
a command and directly connected · 

with the maintenance· of good otder iii the s~i:vice .. " 

a 

. · · .. Jn the instant case, onlilllllllllia.oos, GEN Schoomaker 01dered GEN Byrnes to . 
refrain from contacting the w~hom he was allegedto be engaging in an adulterous 
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relationship (an offense under the UCMJ) and who had complained of bis contacting her.. It is 
foreseeable that GEN Byrnes' continued contact with Ms .. A to advance his adulterous 
relationship would negatively impact discipline and maintenance of good order .. Accordingly, 
we concluded the order was lawful.. 

19 

Regarding the remaining elements of the offense, GEN Schoomaker is the senior officer 
:irt the U.S .. Atmy and we assumed GEN Bymes knew this to be the case 43 Finally, Ms .. A 
provided significant evidence that established that GEN Bymes violated GEN Schoomaker's 
otdet.. There wern three date stamped voice mail messages that GEN Byrnes left on her cell 
phone in 005. Ms .. A's phone log showed GEN Byrnes made 18 calls to her between 

·. _· 005.. Additionall._.. , Ms .. A stated she engaged in sexual intercoutse 
ymes on oi:i.i occasions after 2005 . 

. . . . . 

GEN Byrnes' Response 

GEN Byrnes did not comment to our conclusion tegarding tpis allegation. Accordingly, 
we stand by our conclusion that GEN Byrnes willfully disobeyed the command of . 
GEN Schoomakerto cease cob.tact with the woman with whom he was alleged to have engaged ·. 
in an adulterous relationship.. · 

43 ' . . . ' . . ·, . . . . . ' . . · . .· ' . . . . 
· · · GENSchooi:naker is the senior officer in the Army by viltue of both his position (Iitie 10, United States Code, 

Sections 3031 and 3033) and date ofrank. · . 
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Standards 

/ 
t 
' 21 

ehavioI constitute conduct unbecoming an officer? 

Uniform Code of Military Justice, Article 1.33, "Conduct unbecoming an officer and 
a gentleman" 

The elements of the offense are: 

• the accused d1d or' omitted to do certain acts; and that, 

• under the circumstances, these acts or omissions constituted conduct unbecoming an 
officei' and gentleman .. 

Regarding this offense, the Manual for Courts-maxtial (MCM) states: 

Conduct in violation of this aiticle is action or behavior in 
an official capacity which, in dishono1ing or disgracing the 
person as an officer~ seriously compromises the officer's 
character as a gentleman, or action or behavior in an 
unofficial or ptivate capacity which, in dishonoring or 
disgracing the officer personally, se1iously compromises the 

· person's standing as an officer .. 

Examples of off~nses provided in the MCM include indecency, indecorum, conunitting 
or attempting to commit a c1im.e involving moral turpitude, and being drnnk and disorderly in a · 
public place.. The MCM .finther explains: 

Not evetyone is or can be expected to meet unrealistically high moral 
standards, but the~e is a limit of tolerance based on customs of the 
service and niilitai:y necessity below which the peisonal standards of 
an officer .. .. .. cannot fall without seriously compromising the person's 
standing asari officer .. .... or the person's chaiacter as a.gentleman .. 
This article prohibits conduct by a commissioned officer ... which, 
taking all the circumstances into consideration, is thus compromising .. 

Anny Regulation 600-100, "Army Leadership/' dated Septembel' 17,199.3 

This regulation sets fotth general leadership responsibilities applicable to all genernl 
officers and senior civilians in the Almy .. Of particulai· relevance in this case are the following 
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specific responsibilities assigned to senior Almy leaders that appear in Section 2 .. 1.a. of the 
iegulation: 

• setting and exemplifying the highest professional and ethical standards, and 

• building discipline, while stimulating confidence, enthusiasm, and trust. 

In addition, Section 2 .. 1 .b. of the Regulation states that general officers at the strategic 
levels of the Army are responsible for" ..... strengthening the Army's values throughthe.ir own 

. behaviors .. ' ' Section 1.8 of the Regulation identifies "duty'~ and "integrity'' as two of the four 

. essential va.lues oftlie Army's p:i:ofessional ethic. "Duty'' is de.fined as the "legal and moral 
· obligation to do what should be done without being told." "Integrity'' is defined in terms of 
.· . ''honesty,. uprightness, the avoidance of deception and steadfast adherence to standards of 

behavior .. " 

Title 1 O, United States Code, Section 3583, "Requirement of exemplary conduct" 

This statute requires all commanding officers an~ others in autho1ity in the Almy fo: 

• show iti themselves a good example ofvittue, honot', patriotism, and
subordination; 

 

· • be vigilant in inspecting the conduct of all petsons who are placed under 
their comm.arid; 

• guard agairist and suppress all dissolute and immoral practices; and to 
couect, according to laws and regulations of the Almy, all persons who a.re 
guilty of them; and 

• · take all necessary and propei' measures, under the laws, regulations, and 
customs of the' Army, . to promote and safeguru:d the morale~ the physical 
well-being; and the genetal welfare of the officers and enlisted persons · 
under their command or charge" 

. fu. ·evaluating GEN Byrnes' conduct in light of the cited standards, we reiterate evidence 
set foith above:.· 

Discussion 

22 

-- .!!.--- --- ---

We conduded that GEN Byrnes' adulterous relationship with Ms. A and his willful 
 · disobedience of GEN Schoomaker's ozder sexiously compi'omised bis standing as an officer and, 
· ··thei·efote>could. be characterized as "conduct unbecoming" in violation of Article 133,UCMJ.. . 

Additionally,GENBy:mes' conduct failed to meet the "highest professional and ethical · 
standards" and lacked integrity (''honesty, up1ightness, the avoidance of deception and steadfast 

..
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adhe.i'ence to standards of behavior"), theteby violating requirements imposed on Army leaders 
byAtrb.y Regulation 600-100. 

23 

Further, we concluded that as a general officer in authority in the Army, GEN Byrnes 
impropedy failed to show in himself a good example of virtue, honor, patriotism, and 
subordination by failing to guard again.st and suppiess all dissolute and immoral practices .. 
Specifically, GEN Byrnes failedto guard against and suppress his own adulterous ielationship in 
violation of his statutory duty to take aii necessary and proper measures, tinder the laws; 
regulations, and customs of the A.tm.y, to promote and safeguard the morale, physical well being, 

. and general welfare of the officei:s and enlisted persons under his command or charge. Such 
conduct violated Title 10, United States Code, Section 3583 .. 

.. GENBymes' Response 
. 

GEN 
. 

Byrnes did not comment to our conclusion regarding this allegation. Accordirig1y, 
we stand by om· conclusion that GEN Byrnes; behavior constituted conduct unbecoming an 

· officet. 

E. Did GEN Bymes fail to use the Govenunent travel caid for expenses arising from 
official Government travel? 

Standards 

OoD 7000.14-R, "i>oD Financial Management Regulations (FMR.s)" 

. Volume 9, Chapter 3, Paragraph 0303, ''MANDATORY USE OF THE TRAVEL 
·. ·. CARD," states, "All DoD personnel are required to"tise the goveinment-spo:risored, contractor'­

.. issued travel. card for all expenses arising from official government travel."45 46 

Volume 9, Chapter 3, Subparagraph 030104, "Compliance," states, "It is the 
tesponsibiiity of commanders and supervisors at all levels to ensure compliance with this 

. , . gul ,,47 . 
. _te ation. . · . 

Depattmenfof the Army~ Office of the Assistant Secretary, Financial Management 
. and Comptrolier, "Final Ar·myCoidance on Implementation of the '.IYavel and 

· . '.ftansportation Refo:rm Act (TT.RA) of 1998," Memorandum, dated, April 27, 2000 

This meinornndum provides, 

4S . . . • . · · . ·. · . 

. FMR, Volume 9, Chapte1 3, provided that the Government-sponsored, coil.tractor issued travel card shall be used 
. by all_i:>oD personnel to pay for costs incident to official business travel since July 1998. 

~ . . . · . . . . 
· . While subparagraph 030302 provides exemptions fr<>m the requirement that all DoD personnel use the 
·· Government navel card, none are applicable in this instance .. 

. 47. : . . 
. • · This subparagraph was added oil March l, 2005 .. 

~"; ' : ( I : . ' 
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Use of the I1avel Card: Section 2(a) ofTTRA requires all Federal 
employees to use the government travel charge card for all payments 
of expenses for . official travel .. . _ .. Com:inanders will ensui'e that all 
personnel use the government-sponsored, contractor-issued travel 
card for all expenses arising from official government traveL 

TRADOC Regulation .37-3, "Government Travel Card Prngram," dated 
December 22, 2004 

Chapter 3, paragraph 3-1 .a, "Program management," provides, 

The Travel and Transportation Refo1m Act of 1998 (Public Law 
105-264) stipulates thatall U.S. Government pei:'sonnel (civilian and 
rnilitary) will use the government-sponsored, contractor-issued travel 
card fo pay costs incident to official business travel.. Unless othe1wise 
exempted, ail Department of Defense (bob) personnel are tequired to 
use the government-sponsored travel charge card for authorized TDY · 
[temporary duty] expenses only.. 

24 

Witness testimony and GEN Byrnes' travel vouchers established that GEN Byrn.es used 
his personal credit card to .pay for hotel rooms while traveling on official duty .. We noted thaffor· 
each fiavel .Voucher referenced above GEN Byrnes did not use the Government travel card .. 

. . . . . . . . 
Rather; GEN Byrnes used his personal creditcai:d" 

In light of the addition of Subparagraph 030104, "Compliance," to the FMRs 1, 
2005, we also reviewed co ies of GEN Byrnes' travel vouchers for official travel o 

-thr:<>tf 
m · at GEN Byrnes us 1s person ci'edifcard 

foitosts incilired in his official travel GEN Byrnes' CUirent aide-de-camp testified that when he 
. assumed his cw:rentduties GEN Byr'nes in.formed him that GEN Byrnes did not use the . 

Goveuili1en( travel caidbecause GEN Byrnes had had problems with it at some time in the past. · 
. . The aide~de.:.6a:rnp al~o testified that based upon. GEN Byrnes' use of bis peisonal credit ~ard, he 

· too~ used his personal creditcaxd for expenses incuned in official travel, including the dates after 
· . riyfarc1rj, 2005, fisted murtediateiy above.. . . . ·. ·. . . 

oh Match 

DiscliSsion .· 

. . We concltided that GEN Byrnes failure to use the Government travel card for expenses 
in.curred while 6n :Official travel violated the FMRs and the Army Guidance.. Fmthei", · · 

48 . ·. . . · .. 

We noted that in preparing GEN Byrnes, !I avel vouchers his failure to use the Government tr ave I card was . 
flagged and then justified as "prefers to use personal card." However, we reviewed a memorandum prepared by. 
GEN Byrn,es' aide-de-camp, i!Ii.d submitted by GEN Byrnes along wi14 his response to om· initi~ conclusions, 

: stttilig GEN 13ymes' travel vouchers were prepaied by members of GEN Byrnes' staff and that he was not aware 
that his failure to use the Govemment tiavel card ha:d been flagged and justified . · • · · · . 

.. • 
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GEN Byrnes' failure to ensure that his subordinates used the Gover:nment navel cmd for 
expenses incuned afte~2005, while on official travel also violated . . 
Subpa:tagraph 030104 o~. Ffuall GEN Byrnes' failure to use his Gover:bment travel 
cai:d for expenses incurred after 2004, violated IRADOC Regulation 37-3:. · 

25 
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GEN Byrnes' Response 

In his response, GEN Byrnes asserted that prior to May 2005, when his aide-de-camp 
raised the issue of mandato1y use the Government travel card with him, this requirement had not . 
been brought to his attention .. In suppo1t of this a!>sertion GEN Byrnes attached a niemoraridw:i.1 . 
from the aide-de-camp, in which the aide-de-camp stated he was not awar·e of the requirement to 
use the Govetrtmehtttavel prior to May 2005 and that upon leaining of the requireroent he 
briefed GEN Byrnes.. the aide-de-camp also added that though GEN Byrnes' travel vouchers 
had been audited in the last year, failure to use the Government travel card was never brought to 
his or GEN Byrnes' attention.. · 

We stand by our: conclusion. We are satisfied that GEN Byrnes was adequately advised 
of the requirement to use the Government travel card for expenses arising froni official 
Government travel and thei'efore, kriew, or should have knoWn, of this requitenient Specifically, 
the FMRs have had such a requirement since 1998, the Depattment of the Army provided clear 

· guidance of the requirement in April 2000, and IRADOC had a regulato1y requirement since 
December 22, 2004 .. 

V. CONCLUSiONS 

A. GEN Byrnes had ah adulterous relationship with Ms .. A, a manied woman .. · As such, 
GEN Byrnes' conduct could be characteiized as constituting a violation ofUCMJ, Article 134, 
"Adulte1y .. " 

, . B . . GEN Byrnes wiilfull}'disobeyed the command of GEN Schoomakei· to cease contact 
with the woman 'with whom he was alleged to have engaged in an adultetous relationship.. As ' . 
such, GEN Byrnes' conduct could be chatacte1ized as constituting a violation oftJCMT, Articie 
90, "Willfuliy disobeying superior commissioned officer:" 

. •'b~ (iEN Byiri~s' b~haviot constituted conduct ~becoming anoffic~r .. As such, 

. GEN Byi:nes' conducted could be charicterized as constituting a violation of tJCM1, Article 133, 
· "Conduct unbecoming an officer and gentleman," and violated Army Regulation 600~ 100, 
· ''Almy Leadership;" and Title 10, United States Code, Section 3583, .''Requitement of exemplaty 
conduct" 

E.. GEN Byznes failed to use the Government travel card for expenses aiising from 
official Gove1nment navel. As such, GEN Bymes' conducted violated DoD 7000.14-R, 

FOR OFRCML U.SE O}ffiY 
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. "DoD Financial Management Regulations (FMR.s)" and TRADOC Regulation 37-3, 
''Goveriunent Travel Card Program .. " 

Vl. RECO:M:MENDAttONS 

We recommend that the Secretru:y of the Anny consider appropiiate couective action · 
with respect to GEN Byrnes . 

. •. ;~ .. . 

FOR OfHCfAL USE ffitLY. 

26 


	Structure Bookmarks
	Front Cover
	I. Intro and Summary, pg. 1-3
	II. Background, pg. 3
	III. Scope, pg. 3
	IV. Findings and Analysis, pg. 4-25
	V. Conclusions, pg. 25-26
	VI. Recommendations, pg. 26




